
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Council Chambers and Video Conference5:30 PMMonday, September 28, 2020

Due to the ongoing the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission shall be held in-person in the Council Chamber at Grand Prairie 

City Hall, as well as by videoconference.  Members of the Commission and the public may 

elect to participate by attending the meeting in-person, or remotely via videoconference.  

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Sep 28, 2020 05:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/91708046430?pwd=TDlWRktqOHpYaFZ2Q0FhdmpkdFNqdz09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,91708046430#,,,,,,0#,,3584811091#  or 

+12532158782,,91708046430#,,,,,,0#,,3584811091#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or 

+1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923

Webinar ID: 917 0804 6430

Passcode: 3584811091

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/aByzmnzUH

All meeting participants attending remotely will be automatically muted until it is their 

turn to speak.  To be recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting 

platform.  Those joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After 

speaking, please remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 3 

o’clock p.m. on Monday, September 28th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



September 28, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

20-10331 Semi-Annual Impact Fee Update

Semi-Annual Report on the Collection of Impact Fees.pdfAttachments:

Agenda Review

COVID Meeting Procedures

Upcoming Election of Officers

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                          6:30 p.m. Council Chambers and Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 20-10399 Approval of Minutes of the September 14, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 09-14-2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



September 28, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

2 20-10400 P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 

2).  Preliminary Plat creating seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed 

Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract 

No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the 

SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of 

SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

Items for Individual Consideration

3 20-10401 S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council District 1).  Site plan request to 

authorize construction for (2) two office/warehouse distribution buildings on 11.0 

acres.   DevTex Business Park, Block 1, Lot 13A is situated in both cities of Grand 

Prairie (3.1 acres) zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Arlington (7.9 acres) zoned 

Industrial Manufacturing (IM), Tarrant County, Texas, generally located west of S. 

Great Southwest Parkway and approximately 1,600 feet north of W. Marshall Drive.  

The property is located in City Council District 1, represented by Councilman Jorja 

Clemson.

Exhibit A Location Map S200905

Exhibit B SP S200905 DevTex

Exhibit C LP S200905 DevTex

Exhibit D Exterior Elevations Bldg A

Exhibit D Exterior Elevations Bldg B

Exhibit E Rendering Bldg A

Attachments:

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



September 28, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

4 20-10402 S200906 - Site Plan - Lake Ridge Commons Multi-Family/Mixed Use (City Council 

District 4).  Site Plan for a multi-family and mixed use development with 255 

multi-family units, 14 live/work units, and 3,000 sq. ft. of retail on 10.12 acres.  Tract 

1, William Linn Survey, Abstract 1725 and Tract 2, A B F Kerr Survey, Abstract 

No. 717, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-384, within the 

Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of Lake Ridge 

Pkwy and south of Hanger Lowe Rd.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Attachments:

5 20-10403 S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a 

multi-family development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  

the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme 

Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the 

northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



September 28, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

6 20-10404 Z200903/CP200901 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Springs at Grand Prairie 

Multi-Family (City Council District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for a 

multi-family development with a proposed density of 15 dwelling units per acre on 

18.97 acres.  Tracts 1, 2, and 2.6, C D Ball Survey, Abstract No. 1699, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-29 and PD-288, within the SH-161 

and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and generally located north and west of Sara 

Jane Pkwy.

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations.pdf

Attachment i - Proposed Development Standards.pdf

Attachments:

7 20-10406 SU200601/S200601 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - R/T Services Office and 

Truck Storage (City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 

Heavy Truck Parking and Heavy Equipment Parking facility on 2.136 acres.  Tracts 3 

and 3.2, John C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, zoned LI, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and 

addressed as 3409 Hardrock Rd.

Exhibit A - Property Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist.pdf

Attachments:

Adjournment

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



September 28, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 09/25/2020.

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10331 Name: Semi-Annual Impact Fee Update

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/25/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: Semi-Annual Impact Fee Update

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Semi-Annual Report on the Collection of Impact Fees.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
Semi-Annual Impact Fee Update

Presenter
Gabe Johnson, Director of Engineering and Public Works

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
As required by law, the Impact Fee Advisory Committee must receive a semi-annual report with respect to
the progress of the capital improvements plan and report to the City Council any perceived inequities in
implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee.  The attached memo serves as the report.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Impact Fee Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: Gabe Johnson, PE, PH, CFM, GISP, Director of Public Works and  

Romin Khavari, P.E. CFM,  City Engineer 

 

DATE: September 14, 2020 

 

SUBJECT: Semi-Annual  Report  on the Collection  of Impact  Fees  and Progress of the Capital 

Improvements Plan 

 
 

As required by law, the Impact Fee Advisory Committee must receive a semi-annual report with respect 

to the progress of the capital improvements plan and report to the City Council any perceived inequities 

in implementing the plan or imposing the impact fee. 

This memo serves as the report. 

 

As the Impact Fee Advisory Committee, City Council should be advised of the need to update or revise 

the land use assumptions, capital improvements plan and the impact fee. This was done most recently as 

part of the update to the City’s Water and Wastewater Master Plan and Impact Fee update. In 2017, it was 

recommended and adopted to increase the impact fee amount and to create a north and south impact fee. 

 

Impact Fee Rate and Amount Collected 
 

New residential, commercial or industrial development can significantly increase traffic on roadways, water 

consumption and wastewater volumes. Impact fees are a one-time charge assessed to new development and 

redevelopment, calculated in accordance with the methodology outlined in Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 

Government Code. The fees are based on land use assumptions, expected population growth and 

corresponding capital improvements and expenditures necessary to support that growth. 

 

The collection rate that was adopted for a 5/8” meter (1 service unit) amounts to $1,711 for water and $843 

for wastewater per service unit for a total of $2,554 for the North Section. A service unit is based on a 

standard residential water meter. The impact fee amount increases based on the larger meter size. The 

Southern Section adopted rate was $4,676 for water and $1,624 for wastewater per service unit for a total 

of $6,300. Below are tables showing what has been collected and our available impact fee balance for water 

and wastewater projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Impact Fees Collected As of August 31, 2020 
 

Water 

500392 42840  

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 

$    141,160 $  65,878 $334,301 $   69,296 $203,609 $103,110 $  48,071 $110,360 $    59,030 $  29,087 $134,710 $  50,475 

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 

$    331,934 $  44,486 $  97,527 $   85,700 $  29,087 $  36,774 $186,499 $  75,284 $    82,128 $126,193 $103,516 $ - 

 
 

 

Wastewater  
500392 42850 

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 

$ 52,088 $  27,398 $153,948 $   25,712 $  86,829 $  22,761 $  21,497 $  37,514 $    24,026 $  14,331 $  62,866 $  19,811 

Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 

$    141,624 $  19,796 $  37,092 $   30,755 $  14,531 $  16,042 $  86,408 $  23,604 $    39,607 $  47,655 $  48,076 $ - 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 
 

 

 

  

   

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

$103,516 

 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 
 



 
 

Water/Wastewater Projects Fund (5003)  

Calculation of Available Balance  

August 31, 2020  

 

Cash 
 

$ 4,307,543 

Investments     1,300,000 

 $ 5,607,543 

Liabilities: 
 

Encumbrances $ - 

Vouchers Payable System - 

Deferred  Revenue-Unearned - 

Escrows @ 8/31/20   -  

 - 

Unrecognized Revenue: 
 

Interest (no interest for FY20) - 

Unexpended Appropriations: 
 

Dorchester Levee Monuments Log Data 69 $(12,048.26) 

 
  -  

   (12,048) 

 
Available for Any Water/Wastewater Projects 

 
$ 5,595,495 

 

 

 

Capital Improvements Plan 
 

Since the adoption of impact fees, several impact fee projects that are listed on the Capital Improvements 

Plan (CIP) have recently been completed or are currently under construction. The majority of the impact 

fees that are collected are transferred out to the Water Capital Project budget and the TWDB Capital 

Budget. These budgets are used to construct the projects for  water and wastewater projects. Below is a 

table of the transfers for the last 8 years to each of those budgets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Impact Fees Collected 

As of August 31, 2020 

 
 

 

Fiscal 

Year 

 

 

Water 

(North) 

 

 

Water 

(South) 

 

 

Wastewater 

(North) 

 

 

Wastewater 

(South) 

 

 

 

Transportation 

 

Transfer to 

5005 

Water Cap 

Proj 

 

Transfer to 

5005 

TWDB Cap 

Proj 

13 $1,067,814.80  $ 326,805.00  $ - $ - $ - 

14 1,410,431.11  383,861.00  - - - 

15 1,409,396.00  380,484.00  - 4,500,000.00 - 

16 1,892,680.00  514,323.00  - 1,000,000.00 - 

17 1,533,255.00  445,171.50  - 3,000,000.00 1,600,000.00 

18 1,799,587.00 - 774,050.50 - -   
19 1,533,255.00  445,171.50  - 3,000,000.00 1,600,000.00 

 

1,349,085.00  548,777.00   1,000,000.00 - 

     20 1,199,127.00  505,188.50   1,000,000.00 - 

        
Total $11,661,375.91 $ - $3,878,660.50 $ - - $10,500,000.0

0 

$1,600,000.00 

 

Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code mandates that impact fees be reviewed and 

updated at least every five years. Appendix A includes the water and wastewater CIP projects that 

were identified in the 2017 Impact Fee Report for the North and South Sectors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 



 

Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Report 

City of Grand Prairie 
 

Table 3-5 North Sector Water Impact Fee Eligible Projects 
 

No. 
 

Description of Project 
Percent Utilization Costs Based on 2015 Dollars 

2015(1) 2025 
2015- 
2025 

Capital Cost 
Current 

Development 
10-Year 

(2015-2025) 
Beyond 

2025 
EXISTING 

A 24-inch Roy Orr Boulevard/Oakdale Road Water Line (Wildlife Line) 95% 100% 5% $4,387,500 $4,168,125 $219,375 $0 

B Duncan Perry Transfer Valve 85% 100% 15% $222,000 $188,700 $33,300 $0 

C 
30/12-inch Robinson Road and Freetown Road Water Lines and 
Transfer Valve 

95% 100% 5% $639,954 $607,956 $31,998 $0 

D 20-inch West Sara Jane Parkway Water Line 50% 100% 50% $1,906,200 $953,100 $953,100 $0 

E 2.0 MG Peninsula Elevated Storage Tank 80% 85% 5% $2,640,804 $2,112,643 $132,040 $396,121 

F 30-inch Highway 360 Water Line 80% 100% 20% $1,282,145 $1,025,716 $256,429 $0 

G 42-inch Camp Wisdom Water Line 85% 100% 15% $2,800,000 $2,380,000 $420,000 $0 

H 36-inch Lakeridge Parkway Water Line 80% 100% 20% $5,200,000 $4,160,000 $1,040,000 $0 

I 
30/24-inch Hwy 360/Broad Street Water Line 
24-inch England Parkway Water Line 

80% 100% 20% $2,888,343 $2,310,674 $577,669 $0 

J 12.0 MG Terminal Ground Storage Tank 40% 75% 35% $4,500,000 $1,800,000 $1,575,000 $1,125,000 

K 
16-inch Water Line along Eastern City Limits and 
Pressure Reducing Valve 

10% 100% 90% $2,418,245 $241,825 $2,176,421 $0 

M 16/12-inch East Sara Jane Water Line 90% 100% 10% $420,804 $378,724 $42,080 $0 

N 24-inch Lakeridge Parkway Water Line 90% 100% 10% $947,320 $852,588 $94,732 $0 

O Impact Fee Study 0% 100% 100% $27,725 $0 $27,725 $0 

Existing Project Sub-total $30,281,040 $21,180,051 $7,579,869 $1,521,121 

PROPOSED 
1N 30-inch South Great Southwest Parkway Water Line 80% 100% 20% $2,964,000 $2,371,200 $592,800 $0 

2N 
2.0 MG Robinson Road Elevated Storage Tank Replacement and 
30-inch Water Line 

70% 80% 10% $8,830,800 $6,181,560 $883,080 $1,766,160 

3N 24-inch Great Southwest Parkway/North Carrier Parkway 65% 80% 15% $1,764,000 $1,146,600 $264,600 $352,800 

4N 24-inch Corn Valley Road / E. Warrior Road Water Line 75% 95% 20% $3,107,400 $2,330,550 $621,480 $155,370 

5N 12-inch Highway 161 Frontage Road Water Line 10% 90% 80% $1,736,500 $173,650 $1,389,200 $173,650 

6N 24-inch Duncan Perry/Egyptian Way Water Line 65% 85% 20% $3,916,500 $2,545,725 $783,300 $587,475 

7N 8-inch and 12-inch I-30 Frontage Road Water Line 80% 95% 15% $1,649,100 $1,319,280 $247,365 $82,455 

8N 20-inch North Great Southwest Parkway Water Line 40% 50% 10% $2,365,500 $946,200 $236,550 $1,182,750 

9N Arlington Wholesale Pump Station and 20-inch Water Line 0% 50% 50% $5,997,000 $0 $2,998,500 $2,998,500 

Proposed Project Sub-total $32,330,800 $18,780,925 $8,016,875 $5,533,000 

Total Capital Improvements Cost $62,611,840 $39,960,976 $15,596,744 $7,054,121 
(1) Utilization in 2015 on Proposed Projects indicates a portion of the project that will be used to address deficiencies within the existing system, and therefore are not eligible for 
impact fee cost recovery for future growth. 

 
3-4 



 

Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Report 

City of Grand Prairie 
 

Table 3-6 South Sector Water Impact Fee Eligible Projects 
 

No. 
 

Description of Project 
Percent Utilization Costs Based on 2015 Dollars 

2015 2025 2015-2025 
Capital 

Cost 
Current 

Development 
10-Year 

(2015-2025) 
Beyond 

2025 
EXISTING 

L 36-inch Mansfield Water Supply Line Phase 1 0% 40% 40% $3,045,770 $0 $1,218,308 $1,827,462 

O Impact Fee Study 0% 100% 100% $27,725 $0 $27,725 $0 

Existing Project Sub-total $3,073,495 $0 $1,246,033 $1,827,462 

PROPOSED 
1S 24-inch Mansfield Water Supply Line Extension 0% 40% 40% $4,788,700 $0 $1,915,480 $2,873,220 

2S Mansfield Pump Station and Ground Storage Tank 0% 80% 80% $10,080,000 $0 $8,064,000 $2,016,000 

3S 775 North Elevated Storage Tank and 20-inch Water Line 0% 80% 80% $8,004,200 $0 $6,403,360 $1,600,840 

4S 20-inch Water Line along Eastern City Limits 0% 40% 40% $1,521,500 $0 $608,600 $912,900 

5S 16-inch Water Line along Eastern City Limits 0% 40% 40% $1,323,900 $0 $529,560 $794,340 

6S 16-inch Gifco Road Water Line 0% 5% 5% $4,432,600 $0 $221,630 $4,210,970 

7S 20-inch Central South Sector Water Lines 0% 35% 35% $5,295,400 $0 $1,853,390 $3,442,010 

8S 20/16-inch Lakeview Drive and Buffalo Street Water Lines 0% 35% 35% $8,354,400 $0 $2,924,040 $5,430,360 

9S Midlothian Pump Station and Ground Storage Tank 0% 75% 75% $6,451,200 $0 $4,838,400 $1,612,800 

10S 24-inch Midlothian Water Supply Line Phase 2 0% 75% 75% $2,440,800 $0 $1,830,600 $610,200 

Proposed Project Sub-total $52,692,700 $0 $29,189,060 $23,503,640 

Total Capital Improvements Cost $55,766,195 $0 $30,435,093 $25,331,102 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3-5 



 

Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Report 

City of Grand Prairie 
 

Table 3-7 North Sector Wastewater Impact Fee Eligible Projects 
 

No. 
 

Description of Project (1) 

Percent Utilization Costs Based on 2015 Dollars 

2015(2) 2025 
2015- 
2025 

Capital Cost 
Current 

Development 
10-Year 

(2015-2025) 
Beyond 

2025 
EXISTING 

A 30-inch Gravity Line along Jefferson 80% 100% 20% $520,737 $416,590 $104,147 $0 

B 10/12/15/18-inch CWSRF Gravity Lines along Cherokee Trc. 5% 50% 45% $760,884 $38,044 $342,398 $380,442 

C 8/12-inch Gravity Lines along Robinson Rd. 60% 80% 20% $883,940 $530,364 $176,788 $176,788 

D 18/24-inch Gravity Lines along Fargo Dr. 5% 50% 45% $704,507 $35,225 $317,028 $352,254 

E 21/24-inch Gravity Lines along Camp Wisdom Rd. 80% 90% 10% $1,294,369 $1,035,495 $129,437 $129,437 

F Peninsula Lift Station and 18-inch Force Main 80% 95% 15% $7,106,290 $5,685,032 $1,065,944 $355,315 

G North East Lakeview Lift Station 55% 95% 40% $2,097,512 $1,153,632 $839,005 $104,876 

H 12-inch Gravity Line and Lift Station along Seeton Rd. 50% 95% 45% $4,483,618 $2,241,809 $2,017,628 $224,181 

M 10/12/18-inch Gravity Lines along Ave. K 5% 50% 45% $2,641,531 $132,077 $1,188,689 $1,320,766 

N 10/12/15/18-inch CWSFR Gravity Lines along NE 5th St. 5% 50% 45% $1,843,813 $92,191 $829,716 $921,906 

P Impact Fee Study 0% 100% 100% $27,725 $0 $27,725 $0 

Existing Project Sub-total $22,364,926 $11,360,458 $7,038,504 $3,965,963 

PROPOSED 

1N 
12/18-inch Gravity Lines along Hensley Drive from Trible Drive to MacArthur 
Boulevard 

95% 100% 5% $1,738,000 $1,651,100 $86,900 $0 

2N 15-inch Gravity Line in easement from Idlewild Road to East Jefferson Street 95% 100% 5% $573,000 $544,350 $28,650 $0 

3N 12-inch Gravity Line in Northeast 19th Street to Maple Street 95% 100% 5% $735,000 $698,250 $36,750 $0 

4N 18-inch Gravity Line in easement from Highway 161 to Roman Road 85% 90% 5% $465,000 $395,250 $23,250 $46,500 

5N 15-inch Gravity Line in North Carrier Parkway from Church Street to Hill Street 90% 95% 5% $542,000 $487,800 $27,100 $27,100 

6N 
15-inch Gravity Line in East Springdale Lane from Lake Park Drive to East 
Warrior Trail 

95% 100% 5% $2,018,000 $1,917,100 $100,900 $0 

7N 
18-inch Gravity Line in Lakeview Drive from Corn Valley Road to Monteleon 
Street 

95% 100% 5% $1,338,000 $1,271,100 $66,900 $0 

8N 15-inch Gravity Line in Northwest 22nd Street to May Lane 75% 85% 10% $321,000 $240,750 $32,100 $48,150 

9N 12-inch Gravity Line in Easement from NE 32nd St. to Hensley Dr. 95% 100% 5% $99,000 $94,050 $4,950 $0 

10N 10/15-inch Gravity Lines in Easement from Stadium Dr. to High School Dr. 85% 90% 5% $310,000 $263,500 $15,500 $31,000 

11N 
18-inch Gravity Line and 24-inch Siphon in Easement from NW 7th St. to 
Tarrant Rd. 

95% 100% 5% $111,000 $105,450 $5,550 $0 

12N 12-inch North Day Miar Road Gravity Line 5% 75% 70% $1,440,000 $72,000 $1,008,000 $360,000 

Proposed Project Sub-total $9,690,000 $7,740,700 $1,436,550 $512,750 

Total Capital Improvements Cost $32,054,926 $19,101,158 $8,475,054 $4,478,713 
(1) Projects, capital costs and percent utilization from RPS Group, PLC, and the 2016 Wastewater Master Plan Update. 
(2) Utilization in 2015 on Proposed Projects indicates a portion of the project that will be used to address deficiencies within the existing system, and therefore are not eligible for 
impact fee cost recovery for future growth. 

 

3-6 



 

Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Report 

City of Grand Prairie 
 

Table 3-8 South Sector Wastewater Impact Fee Eligible Projects 

 
No. 

 
Description of Project (1) 

Percent Utilization Costs Based on 2015 Dollars 
 

2015(2) 

 

2025 
 

2015-2025 
 

Capital Cost 
Current 

Development 

10-Year 
(2015- 
2025) 

Beyond 
2025 

EXISTING 
I South Sector Lift Station and 18-inch Force Main 0% 100% 100% $3,885,002 $0 $3,885,002 $0 

J 48-inch Wastewater Line upstream of South Sector Lift Station 0% 40% 40% $4,891,859 $0 $1,956,744 $2,935,115 

K 15/21/24-inch Wastewater Line from FM 661 to 48-inch 0% 45% 45% $2,241,809 $0 $1,008,814 $1,232,995 

L 48/42/30-inch Wastewater Line in the South Sector 0% 35% 35% $3,045,770 $0 $1,066,020 $1,979,751 

O 21/24-inch Wastewater Line South of Highway 287 0% 35% 35% $2,650,000 $0 $927,500 $1,722,500 

P Impact Fee Study 0% 100% 100% $27,725 $0 $27,725 $0 

Existing Project Sub-total $16,742,165 $0 $8,871,804 $7,870,361 

PROPOSED 

1S 
South Sector Lift Station Expansion (2.5 MGD to 8.0 MGD) and 
18-inch Parallel Force Main 

0% 40% 40% $7,787,500 $0 $3,115,000 $4,672,500 

2S 24-inch Wastewater Line Southwest of Highway 287 0% 35% 35% $3,650,000 $0 $1,277,500 $2,372,500 

Proposed Project Sub-total $11,437,500 $0 $4,392,500 $7,045,000 

Total Capital Improvements Cost $28,179,665 $0 $13,264,304 $14,915,361 
(1) Projects, capital costs and percent utilization from RPS Group, PLC, and the 2016 Wastewater Master Plan Update. 
(2) Utilization in 2015 on Proposed Projects indicates a portion of the project that will be used to address deficiencies within the existing system, and therefore are not eligible 
for impact fee cost recovery for future growth. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3-7 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10399 Name: Approval of Minutes of the September 14, 2020 P&Z
r14, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the September 14, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 09-14-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
Approval of Minutes of the September 14, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 
 SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Julia Perez, Bill Moser, Eric Hedin, 
Warren Landrum, Clayton Fisher. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: None 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Bill Hills, Deputy City Manager, Rashad Jackson, Planning Director, 
Savannah Ware, Chief City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Jonathan Tooley, Planner, Mark 
Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, Monica Espinoza, 
Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:30 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Commissioner Hedin led the pledge of allegiance 
to the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of August 24, 2020.  
  

CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P200902 - Preliminary Plat - Hardrock 
Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1).  A Preliminary Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, 
Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres. Legally described as Tract 28, John R. 
Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  
Zoned PD-39, Planned Development District - 39. 
 
 

Item #3 – P200903 - Final Plat - Hardrock Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1). A 
Final Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Hardrock Addition, creating one lot on 12.58 acres.  Legally 
described as Tract 28, John R. Baugh Survey, Abstract No. 137, Page No. 65, City of Grand 
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.  Zoned PD-39, Planned Development District - 39. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Agent: Brian Moore, GFF, Applicant: Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, and Property 
Owner: Bob Brueggemeyer, Various Opportunities. 
 
  
Vice Chairperson Connor moved to approve the minutes, cases P200902, and P200903. 
 
Motion: Connor     
Second: Moser                                
Ayes: Spare, Connor, Coleman, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Perez, Hedin, Moser 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
ITEM FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDREATION #4: S200902 - Site Plan - West Oakdale 
Industrial III (City Council District 1). Senior Planner, Charles Lee presented the case report and 
gave a Power Point presentation for a Site Plan for a 2-story, 335,687 sq. ft. Office-
Showroom/Warehouse facility on one lot. 19.30 acres out of the James McLaughlin Survey, 
Abstract 848, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-39 (PD-
39) District, generally located south of E. Oakdale Road and 1,650 ft. west of N. Belt Line Road. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the applicant intends to construct a 335,687 sq. ft. office/warehouse building on 19.30 
acres.  The proposed site consists of multiple undeveloped tracts that would be subsequently platted 
into one property. Site Plan approval by City Council is required for any project involving industrial 
uses with buildings exceeding 50,000 square feet. The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that 
development meets requirements in the Unified Development Code (UDC), provides adequate 
circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating 
proposed developments.  Criteria include density and dimensional standards, landscaping and 
screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts. Appendix X: Industrial 
Development Standards of the UDC addresses potential adverse environmental, visual, and truck 
traffic associated with large warehouses, outside storage, distribution-logistical related 
developments exceeding five acres in size. The applicant is not requesting any variances and the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

Vice-Chairperson Connor asked what does extended wing wall provided mean? Mr. Lee stated it 
is additional screening for docked doors that are visible to the street.  

 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Coleman moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S200902.   
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Coleman 
Second: Hedin                           
Ayes:  Spare, Connor, Coleman, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Perez, Hedin, Moser 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #5: SU200903/S200903 - Site Plan - PJ's Coffee (City 
Council District 5). Senior Planner, Charles Lee presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan request to authorize construction a 2,580 sq. 
ft. restaurant with a drive-through on 0.50 acres.  The proposed development is situated in the 
Richard Wilson Survey, Abstract No. 1578, Sheets Addition, Block A, Lot 2, Grand Prairie, Dallas 
County, Texas, generally located east of N. Belt Line Road approximately 550 feet south of E. 
Tarrant Road, and addressed as 614 N. Belt Line Road.  The property is zoned Commercial (C) 
District. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the applicant intends to construct a 2,580 sq. ft. restaurant with drive through on 
0.50 acres.  Drive through restaurants require a Specific Use Permit. Development at this location 
requires a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan approval by City Council. The proposed use is a 
Restaurant (Coffee Shop) with a Drive Through. The Site Plan includes a 2,580 sq. ft. restaurant with 
one way circulation, dumpster enclosure, drive aisle, and 22 parking spaces. The site will be accessible 
from a commercial drive along northbound N. Belt Line Road. The drive-through lane wraps around 
the building.  The menu board is located at rear of the building and the pickup window is located 
on the north side of the building.  The site includes an outdoor seating area at the building entrance 
underneath a decorative canopy. The applicant is not requesting any variances and the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following condition: 

1. The applicant shall create and file a shared facilities agreement that addresses the shared 
parking, shared dumpster, and any necessary adjustments to the frequency of garbage 
collection. 

Commissioner Smith stated she is concerned if approved and once they open, what standards of 
social distancing would they have in place during the COVID pandemic? Mr. Lee stated he is not 
aware of any additional social distancing spacing beyond what Dallas County already has in place. 
Commissioner Smith asked if approved when would the coffee shop open for business. Mr. Lee 
stated applicant is here to speak on the opening dates. Mr. Dempsey stated the planning department 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

regulates land uses and any regulation pertaining to a Specific Use Permit but in terms of public 
health requirements we wouldn’t have any regulations.  

Mark Sheets, 612 & 614 N. Beltline Grand Prairie, Tx. 75050 stepped forward representing the 
case. Mr. Sheets stated once the SUP is approved, they will move fast into trying to open the coffee 
shop.  

 
There being no further discussion on the case Commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve as recommended by staff case SU200903/S200903.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Moser 
Second: Connor                             
Ayes:  Spare, Connor, Coleman, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Perez, Hedin, Moser 
Nays: None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #6: SU200901 - Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos 
(City Council District 5).  Chief City Planner, Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave 
a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit - Beautiful Ink Tattoos (City Council 
District 5).  Specific Use Permit for a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio.  Lot 8, Block 1, Original 
Town Grand Prairie, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned CA, within Central 
Business District No. 2, and addressed as 117 E Main St. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to open a Tattoo and Body Piercing Studio in an existing 
building.  The studio will include a front reception area, in which the applicant plans to create a 
small art gallery, and space for tattoo/piercing stations. The Unified Development Code (UDC) 
contains operational conditions for Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios. The applicant will be 
required to comply with these conditions, which include the following: 

 A studio shall operate with a valid license issued by the Texas Department of State Health 
Services and subject to inspection by the State Department or its affiliates; 

 No more than two Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios can operate in the Central Area zoning 
district; 

 The operator in charge of the studio shall complete eight hours of continuing education on 
the practice and safety regulations; and 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

 Hours of operation shall not extend beyond midnight. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the 
applicant comply with the operation conditions in the UDC. 

Vice-Chairperson Connor asked will the parlor consist of only doing tattoos or will they also do body 
piercing? Ms. Ware stated the Specific Use Permit is for both tattoo and body piercing for one single 
use.  

Keisha Grayson with Majesty Hair and Beauty, 113 Main St. Grand Prairie Tx. 75050 stated she is 
opposing to the SUP because it isn’t the right environment for the tattoo parlor considering there is a 
school in the same zoning, and it would bring in traffic. Chairperson Spare asked if the proposed 
owner reached out to her? Ms. Grayson stated no he has not. Chairperson Spare asked if there are any 
regulations about tattoo parlors being in the same zoning with school districts? Ms. Ware stated there 
are limitations on spacing proximity and it is measured around property lines in which this proposal 
location is allowed, and it is consistent with the requirements and UDC. 

Commissioner Smith asked Ms. Grayson how long has she had her business at this location? Ms. 
Grayson stated she has been there for 5 1/2 years. Commissioner Smith went on to ask if she received 
anything in writing from the potential owner and has any of her clients made any comments pertaining 
to the proposed tattoo parlor? Ms. Grayson stated the only thing she has received was the public 
hearing notice but hasn’t received anything from the potential owner. She also stated her clients 
oppose to it due to traffic concerns in terms making it unsafe. Chairperson Spare asked what type of 
traffic is Ms. Grayson worried about? Ms. Grayson stated she stays at the salon late and she wouldn’t 
feel safe after hours. Mr. Spare asked what are her business hours? Ms. Grayson replied her business 
hours are from 10am – 10pm.  

Commissioner Perez asked Ms. Grayson if she has any clients that have tattoos? Ms. Grayson stated 
she wouldn’t know. Ms. Perez stated there are many people with visible tattoos and it isn’t a certain 
type of person who has tattoos. Ms. Grayson stated downtown has more of a family-oriented 
environment and a tattoo business brings concerns in which she feels it would compromise the 
integrity environment. Ms. Perez stated times are different and we should all be a bit more open 
minded and embrace all businesses because everyone needs to make a living. Mr. Moser stated he 
agrees with Ms. Perez’s statement.  

David Hilary, 115 E. Main St., 113 E. Main St. stated he is the owner of the three locations next to 
the proposed parlor and his tenants have complained and expressed their concern about the possibility 
of this tattoo business being next door. He is concerned of losing his tenants over this matter and 
expressed if SUP is approved, he will move his business to another city. Mr. Spare stated from what 
he understands there is a stereotype of a tattoo parlor and what kind of people it would bring to the 
neighborhood.  

Gayle Walters, 113 ½ E. Main St. stated she opposes to the tattoo parlor due to a school being directly 
across the street and it would bring a wrong type of atmosphere.  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

6 
 

 
 

JR Kitchens, 109 E. Main St., stated he is a tattoo guy and he doesn’t feel like the tattoo parlor would 
be a threat to anyone. He also agrees with the commissioners about everyone deserving the 
opportunity to open a business within the city and he is in support of this tattoo parlor. Ms. Perez 
stated she would like to thank Mr. Kitchens for coming out and stating his opinion and believes we 
all have a right to have a business anywhere within the city. 

Juno Alaskah, 324 SE 11th St. Grand Prairie Tx., stepped forward representing the case and stated 
he hears everyone’s concerns and he went on to address them. He has been a tattoo artist for 13 
years and is good friends with the tenant of Angel’s Salon for 15 years now. He has a diverse 
cliental ranging from 13 years old to elders. Anyone under the age of 18 wishing to get a piercing 
need to have a consent form from parents and they would also need to be present. No one under 
the age of 18 would be able to get a tattoo. Mr. Alaskah went on to state he strives to make his 
appointments during the day to avoid working long hours at night. Mr. Connor asked how many 
artists will be in the shop. Mr. Alaskah stated he would only have three artists at the max. Mr. 
Connor asked what is the hiring process for artists? Mr. Alaskah stated he as the owner would 
decide what artist would be in the shop.  

Commissioner Hedin asked what the store front signage look like. Mr. Alaskah stated the tattoo 
shop will be called a studio and he will have a simple, clean, non-flashy logo outside the shop. Mr. 
Moser asked what kind of art gallery ideas he has for his seating area. Mr. Alaskah stated he would 
use that space for clients to hang out and for artists to showcase their artwork.  

Commissioner Smith asked how close in proximity is the school and what kind of school is it. Ms. 
Ware stated it is a charter school called Uplift Prep and the way the Unified Development Code is 
written the distance is measured from front door to front door and this location meets those 
requirements.  

 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve as recommended by staff case SU200901.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second:  Perez                           
Ayes: Spare, Connor, Coleman, Fisher, Perez, Hedin, Moser  
Nays: Smith, Landrum  
Approved: 7-2 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

7 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #7: Z200901 - Zoning Change - AT&T Cellular Tower (City 
Council District 1). Senior Planner, Charles Lee presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a Planned Development-Office Zoning District and Site Plan to allow for a 130’ 
height (monopole) cellular communications tower location.  The 0.057-acre property situated in 
the James W. Harris Survey, Abstract No. 1072, zoned Single Family-1 (SF-1) District and 
generally located southeast of Lower Tarrant Road and approximately 1,530 feet east of State 
Highway 161, specifically addressed as 1700 Lower Tarrant Rd. The property is within the SH 
161 Corridor Overlay District. 

 
Mr. Lee stated in accordance with the applicant’s Operational Plan, the location, design and 
functions of the 130’ steel monopole will serve growing wireless users within the SH 161 corridor.  
In addition, it will provide a critical link to Nation’s FirstNet system and allow for dedicated 
frequencies for Grand Prairie’ First Responders.  The closest cellular tower is nearly two miles 
(7,050 ft.) to the east along Wildlife Pkwy. The site is located just south of the City of Grand 
Prairie’s utility facility along Lower Tarrant Road and approximately 530’ north of the Trinity 
River.  The 3,350 sq. ft. site consists of the proposed tower and a small unmanned (elevated) utility 
structure, housing generators and miscellaneous communication equipment.  The site shall be 
secured with minimum six-foot chain-link fence with overhead barbed wire along the perimeter. 
Due to the benefits of the proposed increase in service to residents and first responders, staff is 
amenable to the proposed request for a Planned Development-Office District and Site Plan approval 
for construction and operation of a 130’ Monopole Cellular Tower subject to conformance with: 

FAA standards for communication towers.   
Flood plain development requirements for structures located within the 100 yr. flood plain 

as determined by the Engineering Department. 
The Commission granting the following exceptions: 

 Exception to the ratio of 3’ to 1’ height setback distance from residential zoned district. 
Telecommunications facilities be located on a platted lot. 

 
Doug Henderson, Crafton Communications Inc., 1870 Crown Dr. Dallas TX. stepped forward 
representing the case and stated the property is owned by the Grand Prairie Gun Club. 
Commissioner Moser asked to describe the tower system. Mr. Henderson stated the use for the cell 
tower will be dedicated exclusively to first responders in emergency situations and not for the 
public. Mr. Moser asked if the tower is exclusive to AT&T. Mr. Henderson stated Verizon is also 
working on setting up their own tower. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve as recommended by staff case Z200901.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

8 
 

 
 

 
Motion:  Moser 
Second:  Perez                           
Ayes:  Spare, Connor, Coleman, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Perez, Hedin, Moser 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #8: Z200902 - Zoning Change - SF-6 at 317 NW 14th (City 
Council District 5). Planner, Jonathan Tooley presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a request to change the base zoning from General Retail District (GR) to Single 
Family Six Residential District (SF-6) to allow for a single-family residence to be built. Located 
at 317 NW 14th Street. Legally described as Lots 3 & 4, Block 13, Dalworth Park Addition, City 
of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned GR, General Retail District, generally located 
south of Dalworth St on the west side of NW 14th St, and addressed as 317 NW 14th St. 
 
Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 
Direction Zoning Existing Use
North GR Commercial Office 
South GR Single-Family Residences 
West GR Single-Family Residences 
East GR Single-Family Residences; 
  Storage Building 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the applicant is requesting a zoning change from General Retail (GR) District 
to Single Family-Six (SF-6) District to allow the construction of a single-family detached home.  
If the property is rezoned to Single Family-Six (SF-6) District, the property and proposed single 
family houses shall meet the minimum density and dimensional requirements of the Unified 
Development Code. In order for the property to meet all the conditions of Single Family-Six 
District, the applicant will be required to replat the property from two lots into one lot. The 
zoning of General Retail District for this location and along Dalworth Street has been in place 
since the 1970’s. In the last four years, City Council has approved similar zoning requests along 
Dalworth Street. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development Review 
Committee recommends approval of the requested zoning change from General Retail (GR) 
District to Single Family-Six (SF-6) District subject to the following condition: 

 The property will need to be replatted from two lots into one to meet all the conditions of 
SF-6 zoning district.  

 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 
 

9 
 

 
 

There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve as recommended by staff case Z200902.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Coleman  
Second:  Smith                          
Ayes:  Spare, Connor, Coleman, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Perez, Hedin, Moser 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10400 Name: P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-
7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).  Preliminary Plat
creating seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract
1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest
corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).  Preliminary Plat
creating seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the
Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Preliminary Plat creating seven lots on 54.692 acres. Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193
and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of
SH-161 and Forum Dr.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to create seven lots on 54.67 acres to facilitate development of multi-

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10400, Version: 1

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to create seven lots on 54.67 acres to facilitate development of multi-
family, retail/restaurant, and single-family townhome uses in the SH-161 Corridor. The Site Plan for Phase 1 of
this development is under concurrent review (S200901). Revisions to the Preliminary Plat may be required
depending on approval of the related site plan.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-143 Gas Well, Undeveloped

South PD-382; PD-294 Undeveloped

West PD-231C; PD-367 Single Family Residential Use; Hybrid Housing

East PD-294; PD-294D IKEA, Retail, Restaurant Uses; Undeveloped

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts the necessary utility and access easements and meets the applicable dimensional standards.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the plat adheres to
the standards set forth in the UDC.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



S Forum Dr

S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

W
at er wo odD r

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd
Ikea Pl

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Ik
ea

 W
ayWest Grove Ln

Hopi Trl

Kalgary Ln

Oryx Ln

Plains Ct

Brazos Ct

Swenson Ct

Sa
ra

 Ja
ne

 Pk
wy

Paducah Ln

Dayton Ln

Cap Rock Ln

Crosbyton Ln

D

ove Cir

Zion Hill  

Panorama Ln

Edgewood Dr

Hacienda Ct

SHwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Preliminary Plat - P200901
Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10401 Name: S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council
District 1).

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council District 1).  Site plan request to authorize
construction for (2) two office/warehouse distribution buildings on 11.0 acres.   DevTex Business Park,
Block 1, Lot 13A is situated in both cities of Grand Prairie (3.1 acres) zoned Light Industrial (LI) and
Arlington (7.9 acres) zoned Industrial Manufacturing (IM), Tarrant County, Texas, generally located
west of S. Great Southwest Parkway and approximately 1,600 feet north of W. Marshall Drive.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Location Map S200905

Exhibit B SP S200905 DevTex

Exhibit C LP S200905 DevTex

Exhibit D Exterior Elevations Bldg A

Exhibit D Exterior Elevations Bldg B

Exhibit E Rendering Bldg A

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council District 1).  Site plan request to authorize construction for
(2) two office/warehouse distribution buildings on 11.0 acres.   DevTex Business Park, Block 1, Lot 13A is
situated in both cities of Grand Prairie (3.1 acres) zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Arlington (7.9 acres) zoned
Industrial Manufacturing (IM), Tarrant County, Texas, generally located west of S. Great Southwest Parkway
and approximately 1,600 feet north of W. Marshall Drive.  The property is located in City Council District 1,
represented by Councilman Jorja Clemson.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council District 1). Site plan request to authorize construction for

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10401, Version: 1

S200905 -Site Plan -DevTex Industrial (City Council District 1). Site plan request to authorize construction for
(2) two office/warehouse distribution buildings on 11.0 acres. DevTex Business Park, Block 1, Lot 13A is
situated in both cities of Grand Prairie (3.1 acres) zoned Light Industrial (LI) and Arlington (7.9 acres) zoned
Industrial Manufacturing (IM), Tarrant County, Texas, generally located west of S. Great Southwest Parkway
and approximately 1,600 feet north of W. Marshall Drive. The property is located in City Council District 1,
represented by Councilman Jorja Clemson.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to establish two separate industrial lots to construct an office warehouse on each. Once
replatted the developments will consist of two separate lots. The property lies in both the cities of Grand
Prairie and City of Arlington. Both jurisdictions utilize and adopt an Interlocal Agreement in conjunction with
site plan approval as required by both jurisdictions’ City Councils. Grand Prairie requires City Council for any
project involving industrial uses with buildings exceeding 50,000 square feet.

In summation, the existing 11-acre industrial zoned tract is laid out as:

· Devtex Business Park, Block 1, Lot 13A1 (City of Grand Prairie) 3.11 Acre, Zoned LI proposed 55,450
SF office/warehouse facility.

· Devtex Business Park, Block 1, Lot 13A2 (City of Arlington) 7.89 acres, Zoned IM, proposed 47,488
SF office/warehouse facility.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial Development Standards addresses potential adverse environmental, visual, and
truck traffic associated with large warehouses, outside storage, distribution-logistical related developments
exceeding five acres in size.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Private Gas Line Utility

South LI Industrial

West Industrial City of Arlington

East LI Industrial Food Distribution

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The vacant industrial zoned property is generally flat terrain, gently sloping westward towards a City of
Arlington existing drainage easement. Sparsely scattered cedar and elm trees exist on-site with no significant
tree canopy present. As required, the applicant submitted a tree survey and protection plan indicating 57 trees
to be removed with 11 preserved.

The Building A (located in Grand Prairie) primary elevation fronts S. Great Southwest Parkway and its dock
and truck court are located to the rear (west). The dock and truck court will not be visible from the street. The
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10401, Version: 1

and truck court are located to the rear (west). The dock and truck court will not be visible from the street. The
Building B (primarily located in Arlington) is orientated in like fashion, with dock and truck courts located east
and west of the building with the primary storefront elevation facing south. Both building’s exterior elevations
are in conformance with Appendix X’s design standards for industrial developments.

The site will be accessible from a commercial drive off S. Great Southwest Parkway at the existing median.
The commercial drive will serve both properties via fire lane/access easements looping around both sites. The
fire lane and access drive shall serve 10 west (rear) orientated overhead dock doors for Building A and
approximately 17 east-west orientated bay doors for Building B. No additional tractor-trailer storage is being
proposed for the site.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Lot 13A1 Lot 13A2 Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sf) 15,000 135,036 344,124 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 410 410 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 450 840 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 100 103 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 30 34 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 36 33 Yes

Max. Floor Area
Ratio

1:1 0.41:1 0.14:1 Yes

Development is subject to the LI and Appendix X Industrial Development Standards in the UDC. The table
below evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the
density and dimensional requirements.

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC. The
Zoning Analysis Tables summarizes the requirements. The site exceeds the minimum landscape area, number
of shrubs and screening requirements with the exception of the tree requirement due to an existing 100’
overhead electrical distribution easement (along southern portion of property). Article 8, Section 8.9.2.3 of the
UDC restricts tree planting within the easement.

Parking will be screened utilizing 36” height berm and living screen within a 30’ landscape buffer along the

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10401, Version: 1

street frontage.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required (GP) Lot 13A1 Required
(Arlington)

Lot 13A2 Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 29,990 75,441 NA 125,320 Yes

Trees 50 16 (No) 21 21  Yes

Street Trees 8 8 NA

Shrubs 500 500 NA  Yes

Foundation
Plantings

Along Primary
Facades

Provided NA Provided Plantings Yes

Entrance
Plantings

At Building
Entrance

Provided NA Provided Plantings Yes

Truck Screen
Parking Lot Trees

Wing Wall 4 Provided 4 NA Provided Wing
Walls

 Yes  Yes

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements. The tables below evaluate the design elements for each building. The proposed
building elevations meet Appendix X requirements.

The building’s exterior construction consists of 100% exterior masonry construction utilizing textured concrete
tilt-wall panels of varying finishes and colors in compliance with required architectural articulation
requirements. The construction styles consist of two accent materials along the vertical surface. 18” Cornice
projection shall extend along the entire length of the secondary facades. The design provides for a prefinished
metal canopy element that will compliment aluminum and glass storefront on both buildings’ entryways.

The exterior building materials and design conform with Appendix X requirements with the exception on
Building B’s northern elevation meeting 1 of 2 design element requirements as required for the secondary
façade.  Both building comply with all other design element requirements.

  Table 4A: Building Design Elements for Building A

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

East PrimaryY Y Y         3     Yes

North SecondaryY Y Y         3     Yes

South SecondaryY Y Y         3     Yes

West SecondaryY Y         2     Yes

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

East SecondaryY Y Y         3     Yes

North Secondary Y         1     No

South SecondaryY Y Y         2     Yes

West SecondaryY Y Y         2     Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10401, Version: 1

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

East SecondaryY Y Y         3     Yes

North Secondary Y         1     No

South SecondaryY Y Y         2     Yes

West SecondaryY Y Y         2     Yes

VARIANCES:

· Exception to reduce minimum tree requirement from 50 to 16 due to existing 100’ overhead electrical
transmission on-site utility easement’s planting restrictions.

· Exception to exterior façade design elements for Building B’s northern elevation to allow only one
design element rather than 2.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval subject to the Planning & Zoning
Commission:

· Accepting the requested exceptions/variances as requested.

· Subsequent platting as required to establish separate lots as presented.

· Acceptance of the Interlocal Agreement between both cities (Grand Prairie & Arlington).

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200905
DevTex Industrial ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255

www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

EXHIBIT A LOCATION MAP



EXHIBIT B SITE PLAN



EXHIBIT C LANDSCAPE PLAN



EXHIBIT D EXT ELEVATIONS BLDG A



EXHIBIT D EXT ELEVATIONS BLDG B



EXHIBIT E RENDERING BLDG A



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10402 Name: S200906 - Site Plan - Lake Ridge Commons Multi-
Family/Mixed Use (City Council District 4).

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: S200906 - Site Plan - Lake Ridge Commons Multi-Family/Mixed Use (City Council District 4).  Site
Plan for a multi-family and mixed use development with 255 multi-family units, 14 live/work units, and
3,000 sq. ft. of retail on 10.12 acres.  Tract 1, William Linn Survey, Abstract 1725 and Tract 2, A B F
Kerr Survey, Abstract No. 717, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-384, within the
Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of Lake Ridge Pkwy and south of
Hanger Lowe Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S200906 - Site Plan - Lake Ridge Commons Multi-Family/Mixed Use (City Council District 4).  Site Plan for a
multi-family and mixed use development with 255 multi-family units, 14 live/work units, and 3,000 sq. ft. of
retail on 10.12 acres.  Tract 1, William Linn Survey, Abstract 1725 and Tract 2, A B F Kerr Survey, Abstract
No. 717, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-384, within the Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay
District, and generally located west of Lake Ridge Pkwy and south of Hanger Lowe Rd.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



La
ke

 R
id

ge
 Pk

wy

Coastal Blvd

England Pkwy

Nautical Dr
Cove Dr

Fuente  

Grandway Dr

Clipper Dr

Hanger Lowe Rd

Vela

Shoreway Dr

La Jolla Blvd

Waterway Dr

Shoreview
Dr

Senda  

Bonita Dr
Rueda  

Lagoon Dr

Bridgew
ater Dr

Corona Dr

N Grand Peninsu
la

Dr

Marina Dr

Grand Colonial St

Frontera  

Navigation Dr

Explorado
r

Arlington Webb Britton Rd

Costa Verde Dr

Clearlake DrBaysi
de

Dr

Bucanero  

Napa Ln

Catamaran Dr

Playa Norte Dr

Coral Cove Dr

Orion Dr
Regatta Dr

Ri
es

lin
g W

ay

Costa De Oro Ln

Playa Paraiso Dr
Playa Imperial Ln

Del Sol Ct

Fuego Dr

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200906
Lake Ridge Commons Multi-Family ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 6



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 6



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 6



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 6



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 6



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 6



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10403 Name: S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council
District 2).

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a multi-family
development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  the William Reed Survey,
Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and
generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a multi-family development of
412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract
1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-
397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and
Forum Dr.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Staff is unable support the request as presented.

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for a multi-family development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres. Tract 7 of the William
Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10403, Version: 1

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally
located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a multi-family development on 11.74 acres. Site Plan approval by City
Council is required for any project involving multi-family use or within a Planned Development District.
Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for
multi-family use and zoned PD-397.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-397 Undeveloped

South PD-382; PD-294 Multi-Family Under Construction;
Undeveloped

West PD-397 Undeveloped

East PD-294D Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

This Site Plan is Phase 1 of a larger horizontal mixed-use development on 55.5 acres. This phase includes 412
multi-family units in four buildings and the associated parking and amenities. The primary entrance for the
whole development is off the SH-161 frontage road.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-397 with a base zoning of Multi-Family Three District; development is
subject to the standards for PD-397 and for Multi-Family Three District in the Unified Development Code
(UDC). The following table evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development.
The proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 12,000 511,394 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 100 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 120 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 45 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 52 Yes

Max. Density (DUA) 40 35.09 Yes

Max. One Bedroom (%) 70 60 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10403, Version: 1

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 12,000 511,394 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 100 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 120 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 45 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 52 Yes

Max. Density (DUA) 40 35.09 Yes

Max. One Bedroom (%) 70 60 Yes

Parking

The table below evaluates the parking requirements. The proposal meets the required parking, garages, and
carports.

Table 3: Parking Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Total Parking Spaces 536 536 Yes

Garage 10% 20% Yes

Carport 20% 20% Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Appendix W of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements.  The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 76,724 148,966 Yes

Trees 154 154 Yes

Shrubs 1,534 1,550 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

Exterior Building Materials

The exterior finish materials include brick, stucco, and fiber cement siding. The proposed building elevations
also meet the recommended design and building materials in Appendix W.

Appendix W Amenities

Appendix W requires a certain number of amenities from categories such as environmentally friendly building
materials, construction techniques, or other features, high quality features or design, and technology. The
proposal is deficient in two categories and does not meet the requirements for amenities.

VARIANCES:

1. Perimeter Fence and Gated Entry - Appendix W requires that multi-family developments contain
security gates at all entrances to the complex. The proposal does not include security gates to the
complex.

ANALYSIS:

The Site Plan includes changes from the approved Concept Plan that change the character of the internal street
and impact the walkability of the development.

· The reconfigured buildings no longer enclose and screen surface parking from the internal street.

· There are two parallel drives between each building that breaks of the consistent street edge, disrupts
the pedestrian path, and increases potential conflicts between traffic and people on foot.

· The Site Plan removes the textured paving and enhanced pedestrian crossings.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10403, Version: 1

RECOMMENDATION:

Given the significant changes between the Site Plan and approved Concept Plan, staff is unable to support the
request as presented.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

S Forum Dr

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

W
at

er
wo

od
 D

r S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd
Ikea Pl

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Ik
ea

 W
ayWest Grove Ln

Hopi Trl

Kalgary Ln

Oryx Ln

Plains Ct

Sa
ra

 Ja
ne

 Pk
wy

Brazos Ct

Swenson Ct

Paducah Ln

Dayton Ln

Cap Rock Ln

Crosbyton Ln
Es

pl
an

ade

D

ove Cir

Zion Hill  

Panorama Ln

Edgewood Dr

Hacienda Ct

Fe
rn

cr
es

t C
t

CASE LOCATION MAP
Site Plan - S200901
Kalterra Phase 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 7 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 8 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 9 of 10



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 10 of 10



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 7 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 8 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 9 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 10 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 11 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 12 of 12



Category 1: Environmentally-friendly building materials, construction techniques, or other features 
Tier I (Pick Three) 

 i. “Smart” technology which automatically controls functions such as lights and thermostat to reduce energy loads during the day or at times of 
peak energy usage. 

 ii. Use of solar or other form of alternative energy to satisfy approximately 25% or more of on-site energy demand. 

 iii. Landscaping plan that makes use of native, drought resistant plantings not requiring the use of irrigation. In lieu of sod or turf, drought resistant 
plantings may be combined with coordinated hardscapes of high design quality and appearance for the purposes of meeting Tier I requirements. 

 iv. Reservation of existing natural areas comprising 5% or more of the overall project size, with such areas incorporating quality non-invasive tree 
stands, habitat or riparian areas, and not including existing floodplain or other areas already protected or inherently unsuitable for development. 

 v. Permeable pavement for 10% or more of total paving. 

 vi. Electric car charging station (minimum 2). 

 vii. High efficiency windows on residential and common buildings. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 100% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier II (Pick Four) 

 i. Integration of commercial/retail/office space or live-work units. 

 ii. Permeable pavement for 5% or more of total paving. 

 iii. Roofing material with a minimum total solar reflectance of 0.70 and a minimum thermal emittance of 0.75 when measured using ASTM testing 
methods endorsed by the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 

 iv. Significant use of recycled or locally-sourced materials.  Locally-sourced is defined as a material having its origin within 50 miles of the project. 

 v. Preservation of existing non-invasive trees with a combined canopy square footage area totaling at least 5% of the overall project size (trees 
can come from any portion of the site other than areas which are already projected or inherently unsuitable for development, such as 
floodplain). 

 vi. Qualified recycling program available to every resident. 

 vii. Walking/jogging trails within the development.  Where possible, trails should utilize existing natural areas and provide linkages to existing or 
future area trail networks. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 50% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier III (Pick Five) 

 i. Additional insulation. 

 ii. LED or low-wattage lighting. 

 iii. Bicycle parking. 

 iv. Use of additional native plantings totaling 10% or more of minimum landscape requirements. 

 v. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

 vi. Solar-ready building design. 

 vii. Outdoor recreation spaces with communal features such as furniture, landscaping, gardens, televisions, movie screens, BBQ grills, pergolas, 
areas for fitness or sports activities, and interactive water features, not including standard unheated swimming pools, which are designed for 
water conservation or reuse. 

 viii. Big and small dog parks. 

Category 2: High-quality features or designs 
Tier I (Pick Four) 

 i. Granite countertops or similar in kitchens and bathrooms. 

 ii. Upgraded flooring throughout, consisting of masonry tile, such as porcelain or travertine, wood-look tile, true hardwood, stained concrete, or 
deep pile carpeting. 

 iii. Minimum 10 foot ceilings in living areas, kitchen, dining rooms, hallways, bathrooms and bedrooms. 

 iv. Upgraded woodwork throughout each unit, such as crown molding, wainscot, chair rails, window and door moldings. 

 v. Upgraded cabinetry. 

Tier II (Pick Five) 

 i. Arched forms separating rooms and living spaces. 

 ii. Upgraded light fixtures including recessed lighting or indirect lighting. 

 iii. Walk-in closets. 

 iv. Jetted bathtubs. 

 v. Upgraded bathroom and kitchen hardware, including faucets and sinks. 

 vi. Full-size stainless steel major appliances (oven, range, refrigerator, dishwasher, microwave oven). 

 vii. 8 foot doors leading to each room of a unit. 

Category 3: Technology (Provide All) 

 a. Integrated USB ports within all units. 

 b. App-enabled functionality for door locks, lighting, thermostat, appliances, or other electronics. 

 c. App-enabled communication between residents and management for the reporting of problems related to mechanical failures, safety 
concerns, or noise issues. 

 d. Wi-fi internet access provided to users of common amenities such as clubhouse, pool, walking trails, and fitness area. 

 

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities
Page 1 of 1

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10404 Name: Z200903/CP200901 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan
- Springs at Grand Prairie Multi-Family (City Council
District 2).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: Z200903/CP200901 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Springs at Grand Prairie Multi-Family (City
Council District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for a multi-family development with a proposed
density of 15 dwelling units per acre on 18.97 acres.  Tracts 1, 2, and 2.6, C D Ball Survey, Abstract
No. 1699, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-29 and PD-288, within the SH-161
and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and generally located north and west of Sara Jane Pkwy.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations.pdf

Attachment i - Proposed Development Standards.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

Z200903/CP200901 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Springs at Grand Prairie Multi-Family (City Council
District 2).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for a multi-family development with a proposed density of 15
dwelling units per acre on 18.97 acres.  Tracts 1, 2, and 2.6, C D Ball Survey, Abstract No. 1699, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-29 and PD-288, within the SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay
Districts, and generally located north and west of Sara Jane Pkwy.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Zoning Change and Concept Plan for a multi-family development with a proposed density of 15 dwelling units
per acre on 18.97 acres. Tracts 1, 2, and 2.6, C D Ball Survey, Abstract No. 1699, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-29 and PD-288, within the SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and generally

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10404, Version: 1

County, Texas, zoned PD-29 and PD-288, within the SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and generally
located north and west of Sara Jane Pkwy.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to rezone the subject property to a Planned Development District to facilitate a
multi-family development on 18.97 acres. The existing zoning districts allow apartments. This request will
bring the property under a single zoning district.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-377 Undeveloped (Multi-Family Site Plan Approved)

South PD-29 Undeveloped

West PD-265A; PD-353 Undeveloped; Multi-Family Residential

East PD-288 Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant is proposing a Planned Development District for multi-family development on 18.97 acres. The
concept plan depicts 12 residential buildings and one clubhouse building, two pet parks, a pool, internal open
space, garages and carports. The development will have a single gated entry off Sara Jane Pkwy and an
emergency access only point of access off Sara Jane Pkwy.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates this location as High Density
Residential.  The proposal is consistent with the FLUM designation.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

The applicant is proposing a base zoning district of Multi-Family Two with some modifications.

Table 2: Development Characteristics and Standards Comparison

Standard Appendix W Proposed

Max. Density 18 18

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 600 525

Max. Number of Single Bed Units 60% 60%

Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 12,000

Lot Width (Ft.) 100 100

Depth (Ft.) 120 120

Garages (% of Total Spaces) 30% 27.8%

Carports (% of Total Spaces) 20% 20%

Perimeter Fence Type Wrought Iron w/ Masonry Columns Wrought Iron w/o Masonry Columns

Perimeter Fence Height (Ft.) 6 5

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10404, Version: 1

1. The proposed development shall meet the requirements in Appendix W; and

2. Any variances shall be evaluated with the Site Plan when finalized building elevations are reviewed as
part of the request.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Metes and Bounds 
 

BEING a 18.975 acre tract of land situated in the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstract Number 1699 and the 
William H. Beeman Survey, Abstract Number 1236, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, being a 
part of that certain tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Leland Gjetley as recorded in 
Instrument Number 201200049596 of the Official Public Records of Dallas County, Texas (O.R.D.C.T.) 
and a part of that certain tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed (with Vendor's Lien) as 
recorded in Volume 94053, Page 3064 as recorded in the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas 
(D.R.D.C.T.), said 18.975 acre tract of land being more particularly described by metes and bounds as 
follows: 
 
COMMENCING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found with cap stamped “Millen” on the northwesterly right-of-
way line of Sara Jane Parkway (a variable width right-of-way) for the southeast corner of Lot 1, Block A 
of Winding Creek Addition, an addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas as recorded in 
Instrument Number 201800111371, O.P.R.D.C.T., from which a 1/2-inch iron rod found with cap 
stamped “Millen” bears North 76 degrees 45 minutes 12 seconds West, at a distance of 39.24 feet; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 01 minute 04 seconds East, departing the northwesterly right-of-way line of 
said Sara Jane Parkway and along the easterly line of said Lot 1, Block 1, passing the common corner of 
said Lot 1, Block 1 and that certain tract of land described in a Correction Deed to Smith Land Associates 
I, as recorded in Volume 84013, Page 2372, D.R.D.C.T. at a distance of 252.84 feet, continuing in all, for a 
total distance of 490.78 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod set with yellow cap stamped “Adams Surveying 
Company LLC” (CIRS) for the POINT OF BEGINNING, said point being in the easterly line of said Smith 
tract; 
 
THENCE North 00 degrees 01 minutes 04 seconds East, continuing along the easterly line of said Smith 
tract, a distance of 695.93 feet to a CIRS for the southwest corner of Lot 1 of Forum at Sara Jane, an 
addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas as recorded in Instrument Number 
202000007454, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 
 
THENCE South 89 degrees 59 minutes 05 seconds East, along the southerly line of said Lot 1, a distance 
of 1,140.45 feet to a CIRS in the southerly line of Lot 2 of said Forum at Sara Jane Addition, said point 
also being the beginning of a tangent curve to the right; 
 
THENCE easterly with said tangent curve to the right and continuing along the southerly line of said Lot 
2, having a central angle of 19 degrees 49 minutes 33 seconds, a radius of 380.00 feet, a chord bearing 
and distance of South 80 degrees 04 minutes 16 seconds East - 130.83 feet, and an arc length of 131.49 
feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found with cap stamped “WAI 5714” at the end of said curve; 
 
THENCE South 70 degrees 09 minutes 29 seconds East, continuing along the southerly line of said Lot 2, 
a distance of 36.31 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found with cap stamped “WAI 5714” in the northwesterly 
right-of-way line of said Sara Jane Parkway, for the southeast corner of said Lot 2; 
 
THENCE southwesterly, along the northwesterly right-of-way line of said Sara Jane Parkway, the 
following three (3) calls: 
 

South 19 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds West, a distance of 579.06 feet to a CIRS; 
 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 3



South 43 degrees 33 minutes 31 seconds West, a distance of 100.97 feet to a 5/8-inch iron 
rod found with cap stamped “Gorrondona,” said point begin the beginning of a non-
tangent curve to the right; 
 
Southwesterly, along said non-tangent curve to the right, having a central angle of 03 
degrees 31 minutes 06 seconds, a radius of 930.00 feet, a chord bearing and distance of 
South 27 degrees 53 minutes 58 seconds West - 57.10 feet, and an arc length of 57.11 feet 
to a CIRS; 

 
THENCE North 89 degrees 34 minutes 15 seconds West, departing the westerly right-of-way line of said 
Sara Jane Parkway, a distance of 1,010.88 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and CONTAINING 18.975  
acres (or 826,547 square feet) of land, more or less. 
 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 3



S Forum Dr

W Ih 20 Eb  
W Ih 20 Wb  

Vicky Ln

Ernie Ln

S Hwy 161 Sb  

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

Sara Jane Pkwy

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

M
at

th
ew

 R
d

Hopi Trl

Dayton Ln Brazos Ct
Se

do
na

 D
r

Sa
gu

ar
o D

r

W
ate

rw
oo

dD
rCoyote Trl

Cap Rock Ln

W Bardin Rd

Sgt Greg LHu nter Ln

D

ove Cir Qu
an

na
h D

rPon deros aDr

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number Z200903/CP200901
Springs at Grand Prairie Multi-Family ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 3



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 1 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 2 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 3 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 4 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 5 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 6 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 7 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 8 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 9 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 10 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 11 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 12 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 13 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 14 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 15 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 16 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 17 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 18 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 19 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 20 of 21



Exhibit C - Conceptual Building Elevations
Page 21 of 21



Development Standards 

 Development of the subject property shall be in accordance with and conform to the City 

of Grand Prairie Unified Development Code (UDC) for all the development regulations 

pertaining to the “MF-2” District, the “GR” District, and the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District 

unless otherwise specified herein. Multi-family development shall be constructed to the 

following standards:  

1. Land use density shall not exceed 18 units per net acre. Net acreage is defined as land 

area exclusive of flood plain areas and public right-of-way dedications. 

2. All unit sizes shall be in accordance with minimum square footages as presented below: 

a. Studio—525 Square Feet 

b. 1-bedroom—690 Square feet 

c. 2-bedroom—980 Square feet 

d. 3-bedroom—1100 Square feet 

3. Parking garages attached and detached shall be provided for 25% of all units. Attached 

garage parking shall be directly accessible to the main building in which the apartment 

unit is located. 

4. Ten percent (10%) of all required parking spaces shall be dedicated as guest parking. 

5. Fencing and Landscaping  

a. 5-foot high decorative fence is required along all perimeter lot lines. All gates 

shall be installed with an Opticom device approved by the Fire Department to 

facilitate emergency access (Article 11.13.1 UDC). Provision for a turnaround 

must be provided prior to the gate. Such fence cannot be constructed within the 

visibility triangle at street corner intersections.  

b. Landscaping requirements shall comply with Article VIII, “Landscaping and 

Screening” of the Unified Development Code.  

c. All new landscape construction must be irrigated and maintained in a healthy state 

and be devoid of weeds or unplanned vegetation. All dead landscape materials 

must be promptly removed and replaced as required. 

d. Street trees shall be required along Sara Jane Parkway and Forum Drive every 50-

foot on center of street frontage and be placed no closer than 8-feet from the back 

Attachment i - Proposed Development Standards
Page 1 of 2



of curb. A 25-foot wide landscape buffer is required along these same street 

frontages. 

6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, commencement of construction or development, a 

Planned Development Site Plan shall be approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and City Council. 

7. Units per building shall be established by approval of a Planned Development Site Plan 

by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment i - Proposed Development Standards
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10406 Name: SU200601/S200601 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- R/T Services Office and Truck Storage (City
Council District 1).

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/21/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/28/2020

Title: SU200601/S200601 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - R/T Services Office and Truck Storage (City
Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Heavy Truck Parking and Heavy
Equipment Parking facility on 2.136 acres.  Tracts 3 and 3.2, John C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1183,
City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned LI, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and
addressed as 3409 Hardrock Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Property Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

SU200601/S200601 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - R/T Services Office and Truck Storage (City Council
District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Heavy Truck Parking and Heavy Equipment Parking
facility on 2.136 acres.  Tracts 3 and 3.2, John C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned LI, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3409 Hardrock Rd.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:
Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Heavy Truck Parking and Heavy Equipment Parking facility on 2.136
acres. Tracts 3 and 3.2, John C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned LI, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3409 Hardrock Rd.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10406, Version: 1

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:
The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Light Industrial (Metal Finishing)

South SF-1 Single Family Residence

East LI SH-161; Light Industrial

West LI Light Industrial

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to establish a Heavy Truck Parking and Heavy Equipment Parking facility in the Light
Industrial (LI) district. This use requires a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit
process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their
location, functional or operational nature, could have potentially negative impact upon surrounding properties;
and to provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by further restricting or conditioning
them so as to eliminate such probable negative impacts.

SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

R/T Services provides concrete and material hauling services. The site will be used for an office and to park
heavy trucks and equipment, including tractors, trailers, skid steers, and excavators. The Site Plan includes a
1,200 sq. ft. office building, auto parking spaces, and eight truck parking spaces.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned Light Industrial (LI). Development is subject to the standards in Article 6 the
UDC. The following table evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The
proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 93,044.16 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 260.55 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 356.73 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 17 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.01:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. The
table below summarizes these requirements.  The proposal exceeds the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 9,304 60,504 Yes

Trees 19 18 Yes*

Shrubs 186 85 Yes*

Seasonal Color (C.G.) 139 170 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10406, Version: 1

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 9,304 60,504 Yes

Trees 19 18 Yes*

Shrubs 186 85 Yes*

Seasonal Color (C.G.) 139 170 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

*The applicant is preserving 16 existing trees which count as 88 tree credits.  Existing tree count towards the
require trees and shrubs.

APPENDIX F STANDARDS:

Building Design

The exterior building materials include stone, stucco, fiber cement vertical siding, and aluminum standing seam
metal roof.  The proposed building elevations meet the requirements for windows, articulation and materials.

Menu Items

Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from four categories: Usable Open and Pedestrian
Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable
Community. The table below lists the Menu Items included in the proposal. The proposal includes 12 Menu
Items and meets the Appendix F Menu Items requirements.

Table 5: Appendix F Menu Items

Category Amenity

Site Design and Building Orientation 100% Parking Behind Building

Site Design and Building Orientation Add Parking Lot Trees

Building Design Materials Mix

Building Design Stone Accent

Building Design Color Contrast

Building Design Articulated Public Entrance

Building Design Enhanced Windows

Building Design Canopy Variation

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Mature Trees

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Preserve Open Space

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Recycling Program

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Native Plants

VARIANCES:

The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/25/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Page 1 of 1 
W&A No. 18065.01 

September 24, 2020 

FIELD NOTES 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION  

1301 PARKER ROAD, LLC  
 

State of Texas  
County of Dallas 
 
Being a tract of land located in the John C. Read Survey, Abstract No. 1183, City of Grand 
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, being all of a tract of land described in a deed to 1301 Parker 
Road, LLC according to Instrument No. D20800226042, Official Public Records, Dallas County, 
Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found with a cap stamped “CBG” in the east right-of-way line of 

Hardrock Road (a variable width right-of-way), said iron rod being the southwest 
corner of said Parker Road tract, and the northwest corner of a tract of land described 
in a deed to Betty J. Dyess, Independent Executrix of the Estate of Joe & Viola 
Lindamood, recorded in Volume 5286, Page 469, Deed Records, Dallas County, 
Texas (D.R.T.C.T.); 

 
 THENCE N 00°17’42” W, along the east right-of-way line of said Hardrock Road, and the west 

line of said Parker Road tract, a distance of 260.55 feet to 1/2” iron rod found, said 
iron rod being the northwest corner of said Parker Road tract, and the southwest 
corner of a Right-Of-Way Dedication tract according to Instrument Number 
200900131171, O.P.R.D.C.T.; 

 
THENCE N 89°01’26” E, along the north line of said Parker Road tract, the south line of said 

Right-Of-Way Dedication, passing a 1/2” iron rod found at 31.65 feet, said iron rod 
being in the north line of said Parker Road tract, and the southwest corner of Lot 1, 
Block A of Webster Addition, an addition to the city of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 
Texas, according to Instrument Number 200900131171, O.P.R.D.C.T., continuing in 
all a distance of 357.55 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found, said iron rod being the northeast 
corner of said Parker Road tract, the southeast corner of said Lot 1, and the 
northwest corner of a tract of land described in a deed to State Of Texas, recorded in 
Volume 2003193, Page 1604, D.R.D.C.T.; 

 
THENCE S 00°06’57” E, along the east line of said Parker Road tract, and the west line of said 

State Of Texas tract, a distance of 260.58 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found with a cap 
stamped “CBG”, being the southeast corner of said Parker Road tract, the southwest 
corner of said State Of Texas tract, and the northeast corner of said Dyess tract;  

 
THENCE S 89°01’39” W, along the south line of said Parker Road tract, and the north line of 

said Dyess tract, a distance of 356.73 feet to the place of beginning and containing 
2.136 acres (93,050 square feet) of land, more or less.     

 
THIS SURVEY WAS MADE ON THE GROUND UNDER THE 
DIRECT SUPERVISION OF AARON L. STRINGFELLOW, 
R.P.L.S. NO. 6373 DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2020. ALL 
BEARINGS RECITED HEREIN ARE CORRELATED TO THE 
TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NORTH 
CENTRAL ZONE 4202, NAD OF 1983. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2



Ha
rd

ro
ck

 R
d

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 Sb
  

N 
Hw

y 1
61

 N
b  

Leyfair Dr

Parker Rd

Jelmak Av

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number SU200601/S200601
R/T Services Office and Truck Storage ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 5



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 5



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 5



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 5



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 5



Appendix F Menu Items Checklist 

The Appendix F Menu Items Checklist intended to help developers organize their Development Request submittal and 

communicate Menu Items choices to Staff.  This checklist is not intended to be used without first reading Appendix F.  

Developers must select a total of 12 Menu Items.  Unless otherwise indicated, each Menu Item counts as 1 Menu Item. 

Instructions: Complete checklist by indicating which Menu Items you select. After completing the checklist fill out the 

Menu Item Summary Table. 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space that exceeds the minimum requirements with 
at least four Tier 1 amenities and three or more Tier 2 amenities. 

 Tier 1 Amenities: two types of seating, active water feature, 
furnished play area, dog park, sculpture, artwork, furnished 
outdoor game area, or comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Seasonal plantings in decorative planters, textured paving, 
living wall, mural, decorative lighting, USB charging station, 
electrical hook-up to allow programming, or a comparable 
amenity proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 

 Above-and-Beyond Usable Open Space (2) Developers who are able to demonstrate to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council that the proposed Usable 
Open Space goes above-and-beyond the Enhanced Usable Open 
Space may count the space as two Menu Items. 

 Include project narrative or exhibit that lists the proposed 
amenities and describes why the space should be considered 
above-and-beyond Usable Open Space. 

 Public Art Piece Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to one major public 
art piece to be centrally located. 

 Public Art Series Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to multiple public art 
pieces to be located throughout the development. 

Site Design & Building Orientation (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 75% Parking Behind Buildings Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 75% of off-street 
parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

 100% Parking Behind Buildings (1.5) Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 100% of off-
street parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

 Add Parking Lot Trees Provide one parking lot tree per five spaces.  Parking lot trees 
should be capable of achieving 30% canopy coverage over the 
parking area within 10 years of planting. 

 Rain Gardens Provide bioretention areas, or rain gardens, between every other 
row of parking. 

 Permeable Surface Use permeable concrete and pavers on 15% of the surface 
parking lot. 

 Strategic Parking Submit on of the following Strategic Parking Plans: 
 Parking Reclamation Plan – Create a parking reclamation plan 

that includes specific strategies to reclaim surplus parking 
spaces to expand structures and usable open spaces or create 
new ones.  Developers should anticipate changes in parking 
demand and design their site to create opportunities for 
adaptable reuse. 

 Parking Flex Plan – Create a parking flex plan that shows how 
parking spaces can be temporarily used for something other 
than parking, such as festivals, outdoor dining, community 
gatherings, and other events.  The plan should identify the 
parking spaces and describe how they will be used. 

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist
Page 1 of 4

ttaylor
Snapshot

ttaylor
Snapshot



 Phased Parking Plan – Create a phased parking plan and 
construct parking spaces in phases as demand requires.  Areas 
intended for future parking phases would remain as green 
spaces until converted to parking spaces.  If, after five years, 
future parking spaces have not been constructed, they shall 
become permanent green space. 

 Circle or highlight selected parking plan. 

 Ceremonial Drive Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall provide a grand promenade or 
ceremonial drive with trees planted every 30 feet. 

 Gateway Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a gateway, frame usable open space, or 
create a view corridor with appropriate terminus. 

 Park Once Environment (1.5) Developments over 10 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a park once environment. 

 Shared parking agreements between different lots/occupants 
must be in place. 

Building Design (Select at Least Six Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Materials Mix A single material, color, or texture shall not exceed 60% of a 
single facade. 

 Stone Accent All four facades shall include a stone accent in a contrasting color 
and texture from the primary building material.  The combined 
area of the stone accent shall be at least 25% of the vertical 
surface area of all facades. 

 Color Contrast Each facade shall include at least two contrasting colors. 

 Specialty Accent Color and/or material shall be used to highlight entrances of 
multi-tenant buildings.  Specialty accents should reflect the 
personality or character of the occupant. 

 Corner Treatment Developers shall use at least three architectural elements to 
emphasize corners of the buildings: corner entrance, accent 
material, projecting cornice, tower element, enhanced windows, 
cupolas, gables, dormers, balconies, articulation, or a comparable 
element chosen by the developer.  Corner treatments must be 
one of the Menu Items for buildings at key intersections. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed architectural elements. 

 Articulated Public Entrance The primary building entrance shall be visibly prominent from a 
public street.  At least three of the following shall be used: 
recessed facade, projecting facade, raised canopy, taller door 
dimensions, double doors, lighting fixtures on either side of the 
entry, steps or stoops, changes in materials, arches, columns, 
eave treatment, transom windows, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed elements. 

 Buildings at Key Intersections Developers should highlight key intersections by using additional 
design elements to create gateways or landmarks.  Buildings at 
key intersections shall include at least three of the following 
features: corner plaza with plantings and seating, corner tower 
form, cupolas, large window openings, sloped or pitched roof 
form, richer colors, seasonal plantings, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed features. 

 Roof Profile Variation Developers shall use parapets or another technique to create a 
distinctive roof profile. 

 Articulation Elements Each facade shall include at least three of the following items 
every 60 feet: change in roofline, facade modulation, window 

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist
Page 2 of 4

julietas
Snapshot

julietas
Snapshot

julietas
Snapshot

julietas
Snapshot



fenestration patterns, vertical columns, and change in material or 
texture. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed items. 

 Enhanced Windows All facades with windows shall include at least two types of 
windows that differ in the style, size, shape, or placement. 

 Canopy Variation Facades shall include multiple types of canopies.  Changes in 
shape, color, or material should be used to highlight an 
architectural feature or particular user while complementing the 
established design theme. 

 It is likely that individual tenants will determine the final design 
of the canopy.  If tenants are unknown at this time, submit an 
exhibit that illustrates variations in shape, color, and material 
within the intended design theme. 

 Design Elements Facades shall include at least three other design elements: 
trellises, towers, overhang eves, banding, pilasters, projecting 
cornices, columns, string courses, rustication, lintels, or a 
comparable element proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed design elements. 

Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Mature Trees Provide mature trees for 30% of required trees.  The locations of 
the mature trees should be focused in usable open spaces and 
along pedestrian paths. 

 Connect to Parks and/or Trails Provide a connection to existing or proposed parks and/or trails.  
The connection should function as a continuation, not just a point 
of access.  The connection shall include appropriate amenities 
such as bike racks, pet waste disposal stations, water fountains, 
misting stations, or a comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 

 Community Garden Provide a community garden and participate in the City’s 
community gardens partnership program. 

 Parking Reclamation Plan Create a parking reclamation plan that includes specific strategies 
to reclaim surplus parking spaces to expand structures and usable 
open spaces or create new ones.  Developers should anticipate 
changes in parking demand and design their site to create 
opportunities for adaptable reuse. 

 Parking Flex Plan Create a parking flex plan that shows how parking spaces can be 
temporarily used for something other than parking, such as 
festivals, outdoor dining, community gatherings, and other 
events.  The plan should identify the parking spaces and describe 
how they will be used. 

 Phased Parking Plan Create a phased parking plan and construct parking spaces in 
phases as demand requires.  Areas intended for future parking 
phases would remain as green space until converted to parking 
spaces.  If, after five years, future parking phases have not been 
constructed, they shall become permanent green space. 

 Green Infrastructure Provide and maintain green infrastructure such as bioretention 
areas (rain gardens), planter boxes, or vegetated buffer strips 
consistent with NCTCOG’s integrated Stormwater Management 
(iSWM) Program. 

 Solar Energy Use solar energy to satisfy 25% or more of on-site energy 
demand. 

 Preserve Open Space Reserve existing natural areas comprising at least 5% of the 
overall project size.  Such areas should incorporate quality non-
invasive tree stands, habitat or riparian areas.  Such areas should 
not include existing floodplain or other areas already protected or 
inherently unsuitable for development. 

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist
Page 3 of 4

julietas
Snapshot

julietas
Snapshot

ttaylor
Snapshot

ttaylor
Snapshot



 70% Native Plants Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 70% of 
planting materials. 

 Wi-Fi (.5) Provide Free Wi-Fi in common areas. 

 USB Charging Stations (.5) Provide USB charging stations in usable open spaces. 

 Smart Parking (.5) Provide web-connected sensors in pavement that help people 
find and/or reserve a parking space. 

 Ride-Sharing Drop-Off (.5) Provide designated spaces for ride-sharing pick-ups and drop-
offs. 

 Permeable Paving (.5) Use permeable pavement on 15% of the parking lot. 

 Green Roofs (.5) Provide a green roof that is at least 50% of total roof area. 

 Living Wall (.5) Provide a living wall that is at least 60% of the area of the facade 
on which it is constructed. 

 Recycling Program (.5) Institute a mandatory recycling program for occupants.  Provide 
recycling bins in addition to trash bins in common areas. 

 30% Native Plants (.5) Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 30% of 
planting materials. 

 Pollinator Friendly Flowers (.5) Use native plants that attract bees, butterflies, moths, and 
hummingbirds for at least 20% of required landscape materials. 

Alternative Compliance 

The Menu Items listed do not represent an exhaustive list.  Developers may propose a comparable item not listed.  If developers are 
able to prove that the proposed item meets the intent of Appendix F, Staff may recommend that the proposed item be counted as a 
Menu Item.  Indicate the proposed item, identify which of the four elements the proposed item will count towards, and provide a 
brief description. 

 If Selected Proposed Item/Element Description 

   

   

 

Menu Item Summary Table 
Element # of Menu Items 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Walkways  

Site Design & Building Orientation  

Building Design  

Healthy, Smart, Sustainable Community  

Alternative Compliance  

Total Menu Items:  

 

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items Checklist
Page 4 of 4

ttaylor
Snapshot

ttaylor
Snapshot

ttaylor
Text Box
0

ttaylor
Text Box
2

ttaylor
Text Box
6

ttaylor
Text Box
4

ttaylor
Text Box
0

ttaylor
Text Box
12


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10331
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8810014&GUID=A51EA98D-3E9D-4E2F-8FB1-DC9779F1CA94
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10399
	Microsoft Word - 09--15-20.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10400
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808494&GUID=C415BC7F-1361-4DD9-9A6F-F5486A1F5630
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808496&GUID=F6E6B81F-527A-4F75-B0CE-C6A53AA0D80F
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10401
	Location Map.pdf
	S200905 - 01 SITE PLAN.pdf
	S200905 - Landscape Plan.pdf
	S200905 DRC ELEVATIONS 2.pdf
	S200905 DRC ELEVATIONS 3.pdf
	S200905 DRC ELEVATIONS 4.pdf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10402
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808994&GUID=D591F901-1F23-42E1-BE16-E0781844DBE1
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808996&GUID=C7768E46-919F-45B5-A70B-27867EE59AD6
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808997&GUID=233B103A-31B8-4C5B-88D9-74CB12CAC6AF
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809000&GUID=A9831698-B773-4870-AE3D-5A131ECD389A
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10403
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809190&GUID=DEF4E123-4B2D-4A93-A1D8-D81DE42A2AE0
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809191&GUID=2B38F83D-5A10-46C9-B228-B1EEB2D2A995
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809195&GUID=390495D5-B461-4CFD-8F1F-54AB73A8CDD3
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809201&GUID=BB3077BA-4531-4CC4-A0EF-CBC10CE50D86
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809203&GUID=24DAB657-083B-4358-BA0B-9CB8FD8AFB9C
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10404
	Microsoft Word - Sara Jane legal.docx
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809363&GUID=16DA6B98-8242-4414-B43A-20C69F0EFF73
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809364&GUID=A5CA4590-67DB-49C2-9A98-4FCA60FBB7D4
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8809372&GUID=339F4F5B-0A8D-48A5-8D11-D14583059BB3
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10406
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808746&GUID=B4083086-EDA8-4CBA-B12D-14330E07145E
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808747&GUID=5A736ED7-2E26-4066-A5B9-2157799AF7E4
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808750&GUID=7F7315CF-7279-4CBF-979D-C61B2BCE0B94
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808754&GUID=80D62450-1650-413F-BF17-1D555F8E6D9A
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8808760&GUID=F0573411-F2ED-4BAF-BB72-8E3D36CEB2A1




